
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MINUTES 
CITY OF ODESSA, TEXAS 

 
April 9, 2019 

 
 

On April 9, 2019, a workshop meeting of the Odessa City Council was held at 1:30 p.m., in the 
fifth floor conference room, City Hall, 411 West 8th Street, Odessa, Texas. 
 
City Council present: Mayor David R. Turner; Council members: Malcolm Hamilton, District 
One; Dewey Bryant, District Two; Detra White, District Three; Mari Willis, District Five; and 
Peggy Dean, At-Large. 
 
City Council absent: Council member Tom Sprawls, District Four. 
 
Others present: Michael Marrero, City Manager; Norma Aguilar-Grimaldo, City Secretary; 
Gary Landers, Interim City Attorney; and Phillip Urrutia, Assistant City Manager; Cindy 
Muncy, Interim Assistant City Manager; and other City staff. 
 
Mayor Turner called the meeting to order and the following proceedings were held: 
 
Mayor Turner gave the invocation. 
 
Discuss Strategic Planning for the City of Odessa.  Mike Mowery, SGR, reviewed the 
five main pillars that the Council identified as update infrastructure, encourage customer 
service, support staff, build partnerships and promote innovation.  
 
He reviewed a pyramid that consisted of relational, operational, systems, and strategic.  He 
emphasized that leaders build the culture to instill to the employees.  He explained the 
strategic visioning loop that helped in achieving the Council vision.  The loop was a cycle of 
council envisions - staff plans - council affirms - staff executes - council evaluates - staff 
adjusts - citizen provide input to council - and staff recommends.  Mr. Mowery explained the 
MICEE Leaders concept.  One must model the way as in behavior, inspire a shared vision, 
challenge the process, enable others to act and encourage the heart on leadership. 
 
Mr. Mowery reviewed the City’s reputational drivers.  The Council’s drivers were the 
following: 
 
 A place where people want to live because we have a high quality of life 
 Service providers who are user friendly 
 Known as being progressive 
 Respected 
 We have pride in our city, ourselves, and in what we do 
 The cleanest city in Texas 
 Safest city in Texas 
 We educate, cheer, and lead the city. 
 
Council member Dean arrived at 2:04 p.m. 



Workshop Minutes   
April 9, 2019 
Page 2 
 
The Council discussed the reputational drivers.  Council member White stated that the 
drivers were on point.  Council member Hamilton stated that there was no quality of life for 
his peer group to come back to Odessa.  He wanted to bring back the peer group and make 
Odessa inviting.  The next leaders of the community needed to be fostered.  Council 
member Dean stated that we needed to have pride in our city.  With pride, all the other 
drivers will fall into place.  Council member Willis stated that we must tell our achievements 
and successes to the community.  Mr. Marrero stated that staff was working on an Odessa 
Pride Campaign with professional marketing.  He will look to enhance our quality of life and 
redevelopment issues.  Council member Bryant stated that positive stories must be 
published in the newspaper.  A positive attitude needed to be developed with the Odessa 
American. Council member Hamilton stated we do not allow stability with the high turnover. 
Mayor Turner stated that the Council’s characteristics were motivated and independent. The 
problem solving needed to be done together.  Mr. Mowery asked what Council wanted in 20 
years.  Council member Hamilton stated that District 1 was neglected and asked how to 
prevent from happening again.  Mr. Mowery stated that the strategic loop would provide 
guidance.  He reviewed Maslow’s hierarchy of needs.   
 
There was a short break from 2:40 p.m. – 2:48 p.m. 
 
Discuss how to prioritize the strategic pillars that were identified.  Mr. Mowery 
reviewed the Council’s identified pillars.  The milestones were identified on each pillar.  
Discussion was held on issues to be improved, which included embrace technology, man 
camps, and out of towners that do not intent to live in Odessa.   
 
Customer service was discussed as a pillar.  The milestones were also discussed.  The 
current rate of customer service was rated as seen by the Council.  Council member White 
rated it high.  Council member Dean stated that due to vacancies it was not as high. There 
were huge gaps as it was not healthy.  Council member Hamilton rated customer service in 
the middle, as there were certain departments that had too many vacancies.  Council 
member Dean was concerned with the problem from the developers. There were complaints 
on inconsistency in rules due to the interpretation on the ordinances.   She suggested 
gathering the interested parties and explain the changes to ordinances.  Mr. Marrero 
reported that staff was reviewing the process for development.  Mr. Urrutia stated that a 
Texas First consultant would be hired to review the process for development and provide 
improvements.  Council member Bryant emphasized that communication needed to be 
improved to give thanks to employees.  Mr. Mowery stated that healthy leadership must 
nurture healthy relationships.  
 
The infrastructure pillar was discussed as well as its milestones.  Mr. Marrero stated that 
needs were identified and there were significant needs.  He asked for Council direction on 
the priorities of Council including long-range plans.  Tom Kerr, Director of Public 
Works/Utilities, updated the Council on the plans that were in progress.  He reminded the 
Council that Line P & Q were sewer lines.  He stated that there were two components on 
lines, which were new development and rehab.  There was a need for both lines.  There 
were options on funding that included increase debt, fees and impact fees.  Mrs. Muncy 
explained the difference of certificates of obligation and bonds.  She also explained the debt 
service rate.  Discussion was held on the funding.  Mr. Marrero stated that Council would 
have options for consideration.  He stated there were other needs identified such as the fire, 
police and Animal Shelter.   
 
Each Council member provided a takeaway from the session.  Takeaways included giving 
gratitude to each other, staff and employees, opportunity to set the future, provide Odessa 



Workshop Minutes   
April 9, 2019 
Page 3 
 
pride, promote Odessa, and build communication.  Mr. Marrero thanked Council for 
understanding Council’s vision for staff to implement.  Mayor Turner thanked the Council in 
serving as there was a great opportunity for good things.   
 
There was no other business, the meeting adjourned at 4:43 p.m. 
 
ATTEST: 

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

Norma Aguilar-Grimaldo, TRMC, CMC 
City Secretary 

David R. Turner 
Mayor  

 


